

CITY OF OKEECHOBEE, FLORIDA JUNE 18, 2020 TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE MINUTES

I. CALL TO ORDER

Chairperson Montes De Oca called the regular meeting of the Technical Review Committee for the City of Okeechobee to order on Thursday, June 18, 2020, at 10:00 A.M. in the City Council Chambers, located at 55 Southeast 3rd Avenue, Room 200, Okeechobee, Florida. Pursuant to Executive Order No. 20-69 issued by Governor DeSantis on March 20, 2020, and extended by Executive Order No. 20-112, effective May 4, 2020, the meeting was conducted utilizing communications media technology as provided by Florida Statutes 120.54(5)(b)2, by means of Zoom.com Meeting ID 2459713294. The Host computer was operated by Executive Assistant Brock. The video, audio, and digital comments are recorded and retained as a permanent record.

A. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairperson Montes De Oca.

II. ATTENDANCE

Technical Review Committee Secretary Patty Burnette called the roll. City Administrator Marcos Montes De Oca, Public Works Director David Allen, and Building Official Jeffery Newell were present. Police Chief Bob Peterson was absent, and Major Donald Hagan was present in his place. Fire Chief Smith was absent, and Lieutenant Steve Weeks was present in his place.

CITY STAFF

City Planning Consultant Ben Smith, General Services Secretary Yesica Montoya and Executive Assistant Robin Brock were present in the Chambers and City Attorney John Fumero was present via Zoom. The School Board Representative, Okeechobee Utility Authority (OUA) Executive Director John Hayford, and Okeechobee County Environmental Health Director Victor Faconti were absent with consent.

III. AGENDA

- A. Chairperson Montes De Oca asked whether there were any agenda items to be added, deferred or withdrawn. There were none.
- **B.** A motion was made by Building Official Newell to approve the agenda as published; seconded by Public Works Director Allen.

Chairperson Montes De Oca, Public Works Director Allen, Building Official Newell, Major Hagan, and Fire Lieutenant Weeks voted: Aye. Nays: none. Motion Carried.

IV. MINUTES

A. A motion was made by Building Official Newell to dispense with the reading and approve the May 21, 2020 regular meeting minutes; seconded by Public Works Director Allen.

Chairperson Montes De Oca, Public Works Director Allen, Building Official Newell, Major Hagan, and Fire Lieutenant Weeks voted: Aye. Nays: none. Motion Carried.

V. NEW BUSINESS

City Planning Consultant Ben Smith of LaRue Planning and Management Services briefly reviewed the Planning Staff Report for Abandonment of Right-of-Way Petition No. 20-001-AC-SC, which requests to vacate the 20-foot wide by 512.5-foot long East to West alleyway lying between Lots 1 through 10 and Lots 17 through 26, of Block 39, CITY OF OKEECHOBEE, Plat Books 1 and 5, Pages 10 and 5, Public of Records of Okeechobee County, and a 70-foot wide by 512.5foot long portion of Northwest 10th Street, formally known as Sixteenth Avenue. lying between Lots 1 through 10, Block 39 and Lots 17 through 26, Block 28, CITY OF OKEECHOBEE, Plat Books 1 and 5, Pages 10 and 5, Public of Records of Okeechobee County. He stated recently the vacant portion of Block 39 contiguous to the subject rights-of-way was approved for a Future Land Use Map Amendment (FLUM) to Multi-Family Residential and a Rezoning change to Residential Multiple Family (RMF). If this request is approved, the Applicant intends to join the vacant portion of Block 28 to the North and construct a multifamily residential project. With those recent FLUM and Zoning approvals and the property to the North being designated as Multi-Family Residential on the FLUM and RMF on the zoning map, it seems appropriate to place the same designation on the vacated property. This designation is also necessary if the Applicant is to complete the stated goal of developing a multi-family residential project at this site.

Planning Staff's responses to the required findings are. The alleyway is not the sole means of access to any property. The property owner of the parcel to the North of the Northwest 10th Street right-of-way, Fosler LLC, has provided consent and the Applicant owns the Southern half. The proposed right-of-way areas to be vacated have not been improved to facilitate vehicular travel. Turning over maintenance responsibility to the Applicant and adding property to the City's tax rolls will be a benefit to the City. Finally, the Applicant has received authorization from all necessary utility entities. Planning Staff is recommending approval based on these findings.

1. Building Official Newell commented he is in support of the request although, just a little concerned with the Industrial uses close by he proposed residential.

Fire Lieutenant Weeks: No issues were received.

Major Hagan: No issues were received.

Public Works Director Allen stated his concern is with the North to South Alleyway located on the West side of Blocks 28 and 39 that would still be open for the City to maintain. He understands the property is in the City of Okeechobee subdivision which would involve purchasing the property from the H. E. Hamrick Trust. Since this would be an additional expense for the Applicant, maybe a maintenance agreement would be a better alternative.

Chairperson Montes De Oca asked Mr. Randy Simler, Registered Agent for Fosler LLC, who is intending to purchase the property from the Applicant, Omar Abuaita, if the City requested a maintenance agreement would he be open to that. Mr. Simler answered yes.

County Environmental Health Dept: No issues were received.

OUA: No issues were received.

- 2. Mr. Michael Baggot, with SLD Engineering, who represents the Property Owner, Omar Abuaita, and the Applicant, Mr. Randy Simler, was present for questions. Mr. Simler, 310 Lakeshore Drive, Lake Park Florida, was present as well.
- 3. Chairperson Montes De Oca asked whether there were any comments or questions from those in attendance from the Public. There were none.
- 4. Chairperson Montes De Oca disclosed he had spoken to both Mr. Simler and Mr. Steve Dobbs, PE, with SLD Engineering, regarding the application. There were no other disclosures offered.
- 5. A motion was offered by Building Official Newell to recommend approval to the Planning Board for Abandonment of Right-of-Way Petition No. 20-001-AC-SC, which requests to vacate the 20-foot wide by 512.5-foot long East to West alleyway lying between Lots 1 through 10 and Lots 17 through 26, of Block 39, CITY OF OKEECHOBEE, Plat Books 1 and 5, Pages 10 and 5, Public of Records of Okeechobee County, and a 70-foot wide by 512.5-foot long portion of Northwest 10th Street, formally known as Sixteenth Avenue, lying between Lots 1 through 10, Block 39 and Lots 17 through 26 Block 28; seconded by Public Works Director Allen.
 - a) The Committee offered no further discussion.
 - b) Chairperson Montes De Oca, Public Works Director Allen, Building Official Newell, Major Hagan, and Fire Lieutenant Weeks voted: Aye. Nays: none. Motion Carried.
- VI. There being no further items on the agenda, Chairperson Montes De Oca adjourned the meeting at 10:12 A.M.

Please take note and be advised that any person desiring to appeal any decision made by the Technical Review Committee with respect to any matter considered at this proceeding, such interested person will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose may need to ensure a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. General Service's media are for the sole purpose of backup for official records of the Department.

Marcos Montes De Oca, Chairperson

ATTEST:
Patty M. Burnette, Secretary

Patty M. Burnette

June 18, 2020 Official Agenda Page 3 of 3